
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to 
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 

 
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, October 23, 2013 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall, First Floor 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the October 9, 2013 Meeting 

3. Sign Ordinance Exception – 2933 Milwaukee Road – U.S. Cellular 
Public hearing, review and consideration of an exception to Section 30.40(2)(c) of the 
Outdoor Sign Regulations to allow three (3) secondary, on-premises wall signs to be 
larger than 30 square feet in area for the property located at 2933 Milwaukee Road 

4. Sign Ordinance Amendment 
Public hearing, review and consideration of an Ordinance to amend various sections of 
the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to Outdoor Sign 
Regulations 

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 

6. Adjournment 

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Gail Riddle in the Planning Office at 
364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

Notice Mailed:  October 18, 2013 Approved: Julie Christensen   
  Community Development Director 



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
MINUTES 

BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Wednesday, October 9, 2013  

The Forum, Beloit City Hall 

100 State Street, Beloit 

 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
Chairperson Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  Gail Riddle called the roll. 

Present were Commissioners Kelly, Moore, Nee, and Kincaid.  Commissioners Jacobsen 

and Ruster were absent. 

 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the September 18, 2013 Meeting 
Commissioner Nee moved and Commissioner Kelly seconded a motion to approve the 

Minutes of the September 18, 2013 Meeting. The minutes were approved (4-0). 

 

3. Comprehensive Plan Amendment – 903 and 911 East Grand Avenue 

Public hearing, review and consideration of an amendment to the Future Land Use Map of 

the City’s Comprehensive Plan from Office to Neighborhood Commercial for the properties 

located at 903 and 911 East Grand Avenue. 

 

Julie Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation. 

 

Chairperson Faragher opened the Public Hearing. 

 

The applicant, William Zawadzki, was present for any questions. 

 

Commissioner Faragher closed the Public Hearing. 

 

Commissioner Kincaid asked Ms. Christensen if there were any uses in retail not appropriate 

for this district and she stated no. 

 

Commissioner Kelly moved to approve the Comprehensive Plan Amendment and 

Commissioner Nee seconded the motion.  The motion carried (4-0). 

 

4. Zoning Map Amendment – 903 and 911 East Grand Avenue 

Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment from C-1, Office 

District, to C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the properties located at 903 and 

911 East Grand Avenue. 

 

Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation. 

 

Chairperson Faragher opened and closed the Public Hearing.   

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

Commissioner Nee moved and Commissioner Kelly seconded approval of the Zoning Map 

Amendment.  The motion carried (4-0). 

 

5. Conditional Use Permit – 856 Fourth Street 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow vehicle repair 

in the CBD-2, Central Business District-Fringe, for the property located at 856 Fourth 

Street. 

 

Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation. 

 

Chairperson Faragher opened the Public Hearing. 

 

John Thompson, owner of Butitta Brothers, was present and expressed concerns about 

having the striping completed by November 1
st
.  Mr. Thompson stated that he will also 

speak with Planning Staff to discuss the signage.  Mr. Thompson stated that he will put in 

green space but would like to request that he have until next year to get that done. 

 

Charles Haynes, 209 Portland Avenue, was present and commented that he is in general 

support of the project but his concern is that he would like a condition to be added that will 

prohibit any fence higher than 4 feet to be placed on the property because he feels that a 

fence any higher could be used to mask junk.     

 

Chairperson Faragher closed the Public Hearing. 

 

Commissioners Faragher and Nee stated that they did not have a problem with a 4 foot 

fence. 

   

Commissioner Moore moved and Commissioner Nee seconded a motion to approve the 

Conditional Use Permit with the amended condition to submit a landscape plan by 

December 31, 2013 and with an extension for the work to be done by June 1, 2014.  

Additionally, any fence that is installed will not exceed 4 feet in height.  The motion carried 

(4-0). 

 

6. Preliminary Subdivision Plat – Elmwood Commons 

Public hearing, review and consideration of a 38-lot Preliminary Subdivision Plat called 

Elmwood Commons for property located at 1715 Elmwood Avenue in an R-2, Two-Family 

Residential District. 

 

Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff recommendation. 

 

Vice Chairperson Faragher opened the Public Hearing. 

 

Terry Brown, 2629 Robinson, was present and expressed her concern about the traffic at the 

intersection of Elaine and Robinson.  She expressed the need for a stop sign at that 

intersection once the subdivision is developed. 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

Vice-Chairperson Faragher closed the Public Hearing. 

 

Commissioner Nee moved to approve the Preliminary Subdivision Plat and Commissioner 

Kelly seconded the motion. The motion carried (4-0). 

 

7. Planned Unit Development – 2850 & 2900 Milwaukee Road and 1865 Branigan Road 
Public hearing, review and consideration of Planned Unit Development – Master Land Use 

Plan for the properties at 2850 & 2900 Milwaukee Road and 1865 Branigan Road. 

 

Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Recommendation. 

 

Chairperson Faragher opened the Public Hearing. 

 

Applicant John Patch was present to represent McBain and gave some history on the origin 

of McBain Enterprises.  Mr. Patch commented that this was a good project for the City. 

 

Chairperson Faragher closed the Public Hearing. 

 

Commissioner Moore moved and Commissioner Kelly seconded a motion to approve the 

Planned Unit Development.  The motion carried (4-0). 

 

8. Zoning Map Amendment – 2850 & 2900 Milwaukee Road and 1865 Branigan Road 

Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning 

district classification from C-3, Community Commercial District, to PUD, Planned Unit 

Development District, for the properties located at 2850 & 2900 Milwaukee Road and 1865 

Branigan Road. 

 

Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation. 

 

Chairperson Faragher opened and closed the Public Hearing. 

 

Commissioner Moore moved and Commissioner Kelly seconded a motion to approve the 

Zoning Map Amendment.  The motion carried (4-0). 

 

9. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 

The Conditional Use Permit for 622 Broad Street was approved. 

 

The Conditional Use Permit for 201 Short Street (Rose’s) was approved with the Plan 

Commission Conditions. 

 

The Comprehensive Plan and Zoning and Map Amendment for 2091 Shopiere Road were 

approved for just the property at 2091 Shopiere Road. 

 

10. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 8:00 PM. 



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: October 23, 2013 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: SOE-2013-03

Applicant: JNB Signs, Inc. Owner: 2933 Milwaukee Road LLC Location: 2933 Milwaukee Road

Existing Zoning: C-3, Community
Commercial District

Existing Land Use: Vacant
Proposed Land Use: U.S. Cellular

Parcel Size: 0.5165 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
JNB Signs, Inc. has filed an application, on behalf of 2933 Milwaukee Road LLC, for an exception to Section 30.40(2)(c)
of the Outdoor Sign Regulations (the “Sign Ordinance”) to allow three (3) secondary, on-premises wall signs to be larger
than 30 square feet in area for the property located at 2933 Milwaukee Road.

Key Issues:
 A new U.S. Cellular store has been constructed on the subject property.
 The applicant has proposed a total of three (3) secondary wall signs on the façade of the building. All signs will

read “U.S. Cellular” with their logo. The signs located on the South and West sides of the building will be 58.7
square feet in size. The sign located on the East side of the building will be 37.5 square feet. Graphics of the
proposed wall signs are attached to this report.

 The wall signs will be five (5) inches from the wall and illuminated from behind. This illumination will be under the
foot-candle limit.

 The primary sign for this property is a pylon sign located on the northeast corner of the property near Freeman
Parkway. This will be 44’ in height reading “U.S. Cellular” with their logo. This sign is under the 150 square foot
requirement in the C-3 District.

 The proposed sign package is the standard template used for all U.S. Cellular stores in the region.
 The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the location of the parcel involved in this application. The

adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:
North: PUD, Planned Unit Development (Menards)
South: C-3, Community Commercial District (Road Dawg Family Restaurant)
East: C-3, Community Commercial District (Pilot Travel Center)
West: C-3, Community Commercial District (Phantom Fireworks)

 According to the Sign Ordinance, the Plan Commission may grant an exception if it determines that compliance
will create an economic hardship, the hardship is not self-created, and the exception will not undermine the
purpose of the Sign Ordinance or the public interest.

 The application, which is attached to this report, includes a statement relating to hardship. According to the
applicant, compliance with the strict letter of the Sign Ordinance would limit their ability to advertise their brand
due to the scale of the signs being too small relative to the scale of the building.

 The attached Public Notice was sent to three (3) nearby property owners. As of this writing, staff has not received
any comments or concerns.

 Findings of Fact
Section 30.48(2) of the Sign Ordinance outlines standards for granting an exception. The Ordinance states
that the Plan Commission may grant an exception if it determines that:

a. Compliance with the strict letter of the Sign Ordinance would create an economic hardship by either
unreasonably restricting an on-premises sign owner from advertising a business or rendering
conformity with such regulations unnecessarily burdensome upon an owner of an on-premises sign.

 The proposed signage is the standard sign package for U.S. Cellular. It is also proportionate
to the façade of the building. Limiting the size of the wall signs would place an unnecessary
burden upon the applicant.

b. The hardship is not self-created.
 The hardship resulting from strict compliance with the secondary, on-premises wall sign

standards is not self-created.
c. The exception will not undermine the purpose of the Sign Ordinance or the public interest.

 The proposed signs are compatible with the building façade and surrounding properties. The
exceptions to the secondary, on-premises wall sign standards will not undermine the purpose
of the Sign Ordinance.



Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The subject property’s underlying zoning district classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. Consideration of
this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature - N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of an exception to Section 30.40(2)(c) of the Outdoor
Sign Regulations (the “Sign Ordinance”) to allow three (3) secondary, on-premises wall signs to be larger than 30 square
feet in area for the property located at 2933 Milwaukee Road based on the above Findings of Fact and subject to the
following conditions:

1. The applicant may install two (2) secondary, on-premises wall signs at a maximum size of 58.7 square feet for
each.

2. The applicant may install one (1) additional secondary, on-premises wall sign at a maximum size of 37.5 square
feet.

3. The applicant or sign contractor shall obtain an Architectural Review Certificate and a Sign Permit before
installing the signs.

4. Any major changes in the adopted conditions of this Sign Ordinance Exception shall be approved by the Plan
Commission. The Director of Planning & Building Services may approve minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Sign Specifications, Site Plan, Application, Public Notice, and Resolution.





















RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN EXCEPTION TO
THE SIGN ORDINANCE FOR THE PROPERTY

LOCATED AT 2933 MILWAUKEE ROAD

WHEREAS, the application of JNB Signs, Inc., on behalf of 2933 Milwaukee Road Beloit, LLC,
for an exception to Section 30.40(2)(c) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations (the “Sign Ordinance”) to allow
three (3) secondary, on-premises wall signs to be larger than 30 square feet in area for the property
located at 2933 Milwaukee Road, having been considered by the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit,
Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Plan Commission of the City of
Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby grant an exception to Section 30.40(2)(c) of the Sign
Ordinance to allow three (3) secondary, on-premises wall signs to be larger than 30 square feet in area for
the property located at 2933 Milwaukee Road in the City of Beloit, for the following described premises:

PT L 4 MORGAN FARM PT SE ¼ SW ¼ COM AT INTERSEC N R/W STH 15 & W
R/W LE FRONTAGE ROAD OF I90, TH W 150 FT, TH NWLY 150 FT, TH NE PLL TO
STH 15 150 FT, TH SELY 150 FT TO POB 1 A, LOCATED IN THE CITY OF BELOIT,
COUNTY OF ROCK, STATE OF WISCONSIN. SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 0.5165
ACRES, MORE OR LESS. (A/K/A 2933 MILWAUKEE ROAD).

This exception is subject to the following conditions:
1. The applicant may install two (2) secondary, on-premises wall signs at a maximum size of 58.7

square feet for each.
2. The applicant may install one (1) additional secondary, on-premises wall sign at a maximum size

of 37.5 square feet.
3. The applicant or sign contractor shall obtain an Architectural Review Certificate and a Sign

Permit before installing the signs.
4. Any major changes in the adopted conditions of this Sign Ordinance Exception shall be approved

by the Plan Commission. The Director of Planning & Building Services may approve minor
changes administratively.

Adopted this 23rd day of October, 2013.

PLAN COMMISSION

James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

________
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director





CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: October 23, 2013 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: RPB-2013-12

Request Overview/Background Information:
City of Beloit staff has drafted an Ordinance to amend twenty-three sections of the City’s Outdoor Sign Regulations,
hereafter referred to as the “Sign Ordinance.” The proposed amendments include a combination of corrections,
clarifications, and changes addressing development trends and enforcement issues. The proposed Ordinance is attached.

Key Issues:
 The most substantive changes are listed below.
 Section 1 of the proposed Ordinance removes neon signs from the list of prohibited signs.
 Section 4 allows nonconforming businesses and churches in R-1 & R-2 districts to install outdoor signs.
 Section 9 provides a maximum size for awning, canopy, & marquee signs in PLI districts.
 Section 10 clarifies that temporary banner signs are allowed in PLI districts.
 Section 11 provides that permanent banner signs are allowed in PLI districts.
 Section 13 allows Electronically Variable Message signs in manufacturing & PLI districts as secondary signs.
 Section 16 establishes maximum sizes for nonconforming business signs and multi-family dwelling signs.
 Section 16 also clarifies that a primary, on-premise sign may be a changing electronic sign (every four seconds).
 Section 17 allows projecting signs in all non-residential districts.
 Section 19 increases the maximum size of secondary, on-premises signs from 30 to 45 square feet.
 Section 21 allows special event/temporary signs in PLI districts.
 Section 22 clarifies that wall signs may be installed in PLI districts, subject to size limitations.
 Section 23 shortens the compliance time for removing unlawful signs from 30 to 10 days.
 The attached Public Notice was sent to the sign companies that regularly do business in the City of Beloit.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
 The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Ordinance to amend various sections of
the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to Outdoor Sign Regulations.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance, Public Notice, and Mailing List
































	Public hearing, review and consideration of an Ordinance to amend various sections of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to Outdoor Sign Regulations
	1.
	2.
	3.
	4.
	1.
	2.
	3.
	4.
	5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items

